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THE AZUR SELECTION S.A.

The Board of Directors presents its report and audited consolidated financial statements of the Azur
Selection SA and its subsidiaries (together with the Company, the "Group™} for the year ended 31
December 2023.

Principal activities and nature of opsrations of the Group

The principal activities of the Group, which are unchanged from last year, are the invastmentis in the tourism
sector and in commercial real estate. The Group invests in hotels and hospitality as wall as real estate
through a leasing and subleasing business model. The Cempany conduct business through its subsidiaries
and associated companies and focuses on investing in hotels, hospitality and real estate in selacted
touristic geographical areas in Greeca. Currently the Group operates a portfolio of seven hotels (four of
which are subleased to hotel operaters and three fully managed as hotel operators} and a shopping center.
Since 22 November 2022 the Company, by direct admission, is Ilsted on Euronext Access+ Paris (ISIN#
GRS528003007) and traded under the fricker MLAZR.

Review of current position, future developments and performance of the Group's businass

The Group’s development to date, financial results and position as presented in the consolidated financial
statements are considered satisfactory.

The Group's results for the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, are presanted in the statement of
Profit or Loss and Comprehensive income in the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

During 2023 revenues increased by €306.793 or 7% and the results befors taxas decreased by €8.564.574,
or-1281%, respectively mainly due to the [osses resulted the disposal of AS Resort and Goodill impairment
totalling to €7.271.750.

The cverall performance of the Company was decreased as depicted by the ratio below:

2023 2022
Profit before tax /
(Lossas) (7.895.890) -159.08% 668.684 14,36%
Revenues 4.963.465 4.,656.672

Non Current assets mainly include ieased properties representing the most significant balances of our
Balance sheet:

2023 2022
34.934.904 34.380.535
Mon Current Assets 84,55% 81.93%
Total Assets 41.317.170 41.962.465

As a result EBITDA decreased by -475% or (€8.338.568), from € 1.756.451 in 2022 to € (6.582.117) in
2023. The Company monitors its results based on the Adjusted EBITDA a measure useful to the
management and the investors as is used in the context of declsion making for financial, operational and
strategic planning as well as for the assessment of performance In calculating Adjusted EBITDA the
management considers the results relating to continuing operations. the reconciliation of the Adjusted
EBITDA to the consolidated financial statements is depicted below:

EBITDA 2023 2022
Profit {loss) before tax (7.895.890) 668.684
{+} Finance costs 440.914 231,814
{+} Pepreciation and amortisation expense 872.859 855.953
Subtotal EBITDA (6.582.117) 1.756.451
{+) Goodwill impairment 2.483.042 -
{(+) Loss on disposal of subsidiary 4.788.708 -
Adjusted EBITDA 689.634 1.756.451

As a result, Adjusted EBITDA decreased by -61% or {€1.066.817), from € 1.756.451 in 2022 to € 689,634
in 2023.




THE AZUR SELECTION S.A.

Principal risks and uncertainties
The principal risks and uncertainties faced by the Group are disclosed in notes 5, 6 and. 25 of the
consolidated financial statemants.

Operating Environment of the Group

Hospitality (tourism) industry is dependant on consumer confidence, highly sensitive to aconomic, but also
sacial environment. In Greece the industry has been growing fast and systematically in the last three years,
in terms of both visitors and revenues. Furthermore, Greece's hotel market is shifting towards sustainable
tourism practices to attract environmentally conscicus travellers and increase the touristic season. The
early signs for 2024, consistently indicate to a strong start to the year in terms of air arrivals, and frend to
higher occupancy with an antlcipated double-digit annual growth. Prior year (2023) was another very good
season for the Greek hospitality industry and the industry experts anticipate the 2024 to be a record year.
Two years after inflationary pressures from the Covid 18 pandemic and the energy crisis, following Russia's
invasion in Ukraine, inflation tends to de-escalate. Supply chain disruptions caused by commodity prices
spikes due to geopalitical shocks including the attacks in the Gulf of Aden could prolong tight monstary
conditions. However, global growth is projected at 3.1% in 2024 and 3.2% in 2025 which is however, below
the historical (2000-18) average of 3.8%. Infiation is expected to continue to ease gradually, as cost
pressures moderate and economies are batter prepared absorb effects of fiscal tightaning, to deal with
future shocks, raise revenue for new spending pricrities, and to reinforce productivity growth and debt
sustainability. By 2028, the Greek Hotel market is anticipated to experience a Compound Annual Growth
Rate of 2.13%, with the average revenue per user expected also to increase.

Regarding the labour market, the employment index In Greece is slowing down. For an éccnomy where
the demand for workers significantly outstrips the supply, we would expect to see wages and employment
costs rise. Hoteliers are worried about the number of workers who will drive the industry. According 1o a
survey one in five jobs at Greek hotels remalned unfilled in 2023, indicating that there is a great nead for
staff, which may result to increased cost of services or deterioration of the touristic product.

The economic conditions are anticipated to ease the borrowing interest rates. The intarest rate on the
“ECB's main refinancing operations borrowings” is expected to decrease from 4.5% in December 2023 to
4 15% in 2024 and 3.29% in 2025, Hence the Group may identify opportunities to finance new investments
at a decreased borrowing cost. _

The aim of the Company's management is to adapt to the changing era, maintain positive cash fiows mainly
through the optimization of working capital management, as well as strict selection and evaluation of
investment appartunities.

Based on the evaluation performed, Management has concluded that no provisions or impairment charges
are required. The management believes that it is taking all the necessary measures to maintain the viability
of the Group and the smooth conduct of its operations on a going concern basis in the current business
and economic environment.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the value of financial instruments will fluctuate due to changes in market
interest rates. The Group's income and operating cash flows are substantlally independent of changes in
market interest rates as the Group has no significant interest-bearing assets. The Group is exposed to
interest rate risk in refation to its non-current borrowings. Borrowings issued at variable rates expose the
Group o cash flow interest rate risk. Borrowings issued &t fixed rates expose the Group to fair value inferest
rate risk. The Company's Management monitors the interest rate fluctuations on a continuous basis and
acts accordingly.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss for the other party
by failing to meet an obligation. Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents, contractual eash flows
of debt investments carried at amortised cost, at fair vatue through other comprehensive income {FVOC|)
and at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL), favourable derivative financial instruments and deposits
with banks and financial institutions, as well as credit exposures to wholesale and retail customers,
including outstanding recelvables and contract assets as well as lease receivables. Further, credit risk
arlses from financial guarantees and credit related commitments.

Credit risk is managed on the Group level. For cash 8-cash equivalents and financial portfelios, the Group
has established policies whereby the majority of bark balances are maintained with banks and financial
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THE AZUR SELECTION S.A.

institutions with a minimum rating of B.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that arises when the maturity of assets and liabilities does not match. An unmatched
position potentially enhances profitability, but can also increase the risk of losses. The Group has
procedures with the object of minimising such losses such as maintaining sufficient cash and other highly
liquid current assets and by having available an adequate amount of committed credit facilities.

Share capital

At December 6, 2023, Company’s BoD resolved a share capital increase amounting to €1.296.335 by
issuing 1.296.335 ordinary shares at a share price of a nominal value €1 each plus €2.5 share premium
per ordinary share, resulting to an additional paid in capital of € 3.240.838. The Share capital and the
Additional paid in capital increase was made by contribution in kind of the associate companies "Azur Volos”
and “"Azur Meganisi”.

Independent Auditors

The Independent Auditors tgs (Hellas) Certified Auditors Accountants SA, have expressed their willingness
to continue in office and a resolution giving authority to the Directors to fix their remuneration will be
proposed at the Annual General Meeting.

g —

T

Geofg

President of the Board of Directors

Voula- Athens, Greece, 16 April 2024




Independent Auditor's Report
To the Shareholders of THE AZUR SELECTION SA
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financlal Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of THE AZUR SELECTION SA {the
"Company"), which comprise the consolidated statement of financlal position as at 31 December 2023, and the
consolidated statements of profit or loss and ather comprehensive Income, changes in equity and cash flows for
the year then ended, and notes to the consolicated financial statements, including a summary of significant
acoounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present falrly in all material respects the
consolidated financial position of the Group @s at 31 December 2023, and of its consclidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financlal
Reportlng Standards (IFRSs} as endorsed by the Eurcpean Union.

‘Basls for Opinfon

We conducted our audit in accordance with international Standards on Auditing (ISAs), as Incorporated in Greek
law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described In the "Auditor's Responsibilities forthe Audit

"of the Consolidated Financial Statements” section of our report. We remained independent of the Group

throughout the peried of our appointment in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for
Accountants' International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code) as incorporated in Greek law,
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidatad financial statements in
Greece, and we have fulfilied our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the
IESBA Code. We helleve that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our oplnion.

Key audit matters

Key aud(t matters are those matters that, in our professional Judgment, were af most significance in our audit of
the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters and the related risks of material
misstatements were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

For each matter below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter Is provided in that context, We
have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the “Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consalidated
Financial Statements” section of our report, including in refation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included
the performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the separate and consolidated financial statements. The results of our audit procedures, including the procedures
performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying
consolidated financlal statements.

tgs (Hellas) Certified Auditors Accountanis SA
60 Kifissias Av. Maroussi, GR15125 | 6 &disson Str, Thessaloniki, GR54640 |
49 Kolokotrani Str., Patras, GR26221 | 72-80 George Seferis Str, Rhodes GREG10G |
7 Doukos Mpafor Str., Heraldion Crate, GR71202 | 40 Kriari Str, Chania Crete, GR73135
T +302130 SB2E58 | W. veww tgs-hellas.com, www.tys.globat.com
Companies’ Registry: 1456232401000 | VAT#800032665, FAE Athens
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independent Audltor's Report {continued)

Lease liabilities and assets with right of use

The key audit matter

The Company has entered into leasing
agreements (Note 22 of the
consolidated financial statemants).

How the matter was addressed In our audit

QOur audit procedures include, among others, the following: We
assassed the appropriateness of the main assumptions that have
been applied to the astimated value of the assets with the right
of use. We also assessed the adequacy of the disclosures in the

financial statements.

AsgsingthevalggoiGoaawtts -~ o T T
The key audit matter How the matter was addressed in our audit

Goodwill was recognized on acquisitlons of subsidiary and
associate companies. The reassessment of the racoverable
amount indicated an impairment loss recognised in the
statement of Profit or Loss. The audit procedures include, but are
not limited to, the followlng: We have assessed the suitability of
the maln assumptions applied to calculate the amount of the
Goodwill, such as the net present value of cash flow and
attainability of growth and inflation. In this respect an
impairment test has been performed by the management, and

The amount of Goodwill recorded by
the Company amounts to €13.462.086
{Note 16 of the consolidated financial
statements).

The entity is required to perform an
impairment test to determine the
recoverable amount and account for

Impairment  losses, hence  the . .

Company recorded an impairment we ass}assed the assumptions and methodologies usedlto
determine the recoverable amount of assets (cash generating

loss of €2,483.042,
units) and the level at which the recoverable amount was
determined

@E@tﬂﬁ“&‘ﬁa R

The key audit matter How the matter was addressed in our audit

Group's components were not audited
by an Independent Certified Auditor,
because it is not required by law as
they are considered small-sized
companies based on Greek legistation

and regulations.

We have petformed audit procedures on the components based
on ISAGQ0.

Other information

Managemend is responsible for the other information, The ather information comprises the information included
in the Management Report, for which reference is also made in section “Report on other legal and regulatory
requirements” but doas not include the consolidated financlal statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Qug apinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other Information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion theraon,

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our rasponsibility is to read the other
information identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the consolidated financial statements, or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performead, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information, we are required to repart that fact, We have nothing to report in this regard,

Responsibilities of Management and those charged with govemnance for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

Management s responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financlal statements in
accordance with international Financial Reporting Standards as endorsed by the European Unien, and for such
internal contrel as Management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, Management 1s responsible for assessing the Company’s
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Independent Auditor's Report (continued)

ability to continue as a golng concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related te going concern and using the
going concer hasis of accounting unless Management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. '

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company's financlal reporting process.
Auditor’s Respansibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our cbjectives are to obtaln reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a
whole are free from rmaterial misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to Issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinlon. Reasanable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audlt
conducted in accordance with [SAs as incorporated in Greek law, will always detect a materfal misstatement when
it exists. Misstatements can arlse from fraud or error and are considersd material if, indlvidually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decislons of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as incorporated in Greek law, we exercise professional Judgment and
maintaln professional scepticism througheut the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consclidated financlal staternents, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures respansive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient arid appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
Involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, mistepresentations, or the override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the drcumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company internal control,

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by Management.
e Conciude on the appropriateness of Management’s use of the going cancern basis of accounting and,

based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to
the related disclosuras in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinlon. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence cbtained up to the date of our
auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as
a going concern. ' :

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlving
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

. Obtain sufficient and appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business actlvities within the Company to expreass an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinien.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timIng of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencles in internal control that we
Identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
raquirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear an our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance In the audit of the consolldated financial statements of the current perlod and are therefore the
key audit matters.
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Independent Auditor's Report (continued)

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1. Board of Directors’ Report

Taking into consideraticn that Management is responsible for the preparation of the Board of Directors’ Report,
according to the provisions of paragraph § article 2 of Law 4336/2015 (part B), we report that:

a) The Board of Directors’ Report contains the information required by article 152 of Law 4548/2018,
b} In cur opinion the Board of Directors’ Report has been prepared In accordanca with the legal requirements of
articles 150-151 and 153 =154 and paragraph 1 (c and d) of article 152 of Law 4548/2018 and the content of the

Board of Directors’ report is consistent with the accompanying consolidated financlal statements for the year
endled 31 December 2023,

) Based on the knowledge and understanding conceming AZUR SELECTION S.A. and its environment, obtained
during our audit, we have not identified informatlon Included in the Board of Directors’ Report that contains a
material misstatement,

2. Provision of Non-audit Services

We have not provided any prohibited non-audit services per Article 5 of the EU Regulation 537/2014
3. Appointment of the Auditor

We were firstly appolnted as auditors of the Cormpany on 12 January 2022,

Certified Auditor Accountant

Aristotelis Androutsopoulos
SOEL RN 23271

tgs (Hellas} Certified Auditors Accountants SA
SOELRN 182

Maroussl, Greece,
17 April 2024



THE AZUR SELECTION S.A.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the year ended 31 December 2023

Revenue
Othar operating income

Purchases and consumables used (COS)
Staff costs

Depreciation and amertisation expense
Administration and other expenses

Loss on disposal of subsidary

Goodwill impairment

Finance costs

Share of results of assoclates befora tax
Profit {loss) before tax

Tax
Net prafit {loss) for the period
Other comprehansive income

Total comprehensive Ineome for the vear
Net profit {loss) for the period attributahble to:

Equity holders of the parent
Non-controlling interests
Net profit {loss) for the period

Basic and diluted Earnings (losses) per share

Alternative performance measures

EBITDA
Adjusted EBITDA

Notes

-

10

14,1518

9
9
1
18

13

12

Note

1.01.2023-
31.12.2023

4.963.465

(158.020)
(894.224)
(872.859)
(3.076.738)

(4.788.708)
(2.483.042)
(440.914)
(144.850)
{7.895.880)

006.568
{6.899.224)

(6.893.224)

(6.442.738)
(363.674)
{6.806.412)

{0,328)

1.01.2023-
31.12.2023

(8.582.117)
689,634

1.01.2022-
31.12.2022

4.656.672
767.941

(567.137)
(867.030)
(855.953)
(2.278.868)

(231.814)
64.873
668,584

(4.201.072)
(3.532.388)

(3,532,388}
(3.744.330)
211.941
(3.532,389)
(0,190)

1.01.2022-
31.12.2022

1.756.451
1.756.451

The analysis of the Adjusted EBITDA, described in accounting policies of financial statements.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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THE AZUR SELECTION S.A.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As at 31 December 2023

ASSETS

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment
Right-of-use assets

Intangible assets

Investments in associates
Defarred tax assets
Guarantaas given

Current assets
Trade and other receivables
Cash at bank and in hand

Total assets

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity

Share capital

Other reserves

Additional paid in capital
Accumulated losses

Non-controlling interests

Total equity

Non-current liabilities

Non current lease liabilities

Trade and other payables

Deferred tax liabilities

Provisions for other liahilities and charges

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables
Current [ease liabilities
Current tax liabilities

Total llabilities
Total equlty and Habilitles

Notes

14
15
16
18
13

19
20

21

22

13
23

24
22
13

31.12.2023 31.12.2022
2.788.100 1.700.175
15.338.820 13.914.835
13.480.452 16.915.988
1.218.114 1.363.964
1.736.676 262.991
370.741 222582
34.934,904 34,380.535
5.934.903 7.505.350
447.363 76.571
£.382.266 7.581.930
41,317,970 41,962,465
20.958.855 19.662.520
1.549 1,540
3.240.838 -
(11.389.474) (6.148.431)
12.811.768 13.515.638
(118.038) 245.636
12.693.730 13.761.274
17.454.376 14.021.655
180,432 -
4.286.317 4.026.365
1.530.519 1.486.706
23.551.643 19.534.726
4.184.905 7.650.451
561.808 831.969
225.084 184,045
5.071.797 8.666.465
28.623,440 28.201.191
41317170 41.962.465

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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THE AZUR SELECTION S.A.

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
For the year ended 31 December 2023

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit/{loas) before tax

Adjustments for:

Depreciation and amortisation expense

Share of loss/{profit) from associates

Loss on disposal of subsidiary

Goodwill impairment Josses

Interest expense

Provision for pension and other
post retirement obligations

Changes in working capital:

{Increase)/decrease in trade and other receivables
(Decrease)/increasa in trade and other payables
Cash generatad from/{used in) operations

Tax (paid)/refunded _
Net cash generated from/{used in) operating actlvitles

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Acquisition of subsidiary

Disposal of subsidiary

Payment for purchase of property, plant and equipment
Increase in guarantees given

Net cash generated from/{used in) investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Additons / (Repayments) of obligations under finance leases

Interest pald

Net cash (used in)/generated from financing activities
Net increasei(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash aqguivalents at beginning of the period
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the period

31 December

31 Dacamber

2023 2022
€ €
(7.895.890) 668.683
872.859 855,953
144.850 (64.873)
4.788.708 -
2.483.042 -
440.914 231.814
(6.187)

828.297 1.691.577
2.028.712 (5.425.534)
{3.274.098) 4.666.373
(417.089) 932.416
(175.789) -
(592.878) 932.416
1.042 632 -
1.373.331 -
{69.187) (29.321)
{93.663) -
2.253.112 (29.321)
(848.529) {961.960)
(440.914) {231.814)
{1.289.442) {1.193.774)
370.792 {290.679)
76.571 367.250
447.363 76.571

The accompanying notes form an intagral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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THE AZUR SELECTION S.A.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2023

1. Incorporation and principal activities

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of THE AZUR SELECTION SA
(the "Company” or the “Group™) and its subsidlaries. The Company has been incorporated in Cyprus on 20
February 2017, as a private limited liability company under the provisions of the Cyprus Companies Law,
Cap. 113, with registerad address at Anexartisias & Athinon, NORA CCURT, 2nd floor, Limassol, 30440,
Cyprus. On 31 May 2022, the Company's shareholders resolved the domiciliation of the Company in
Greece and the transfer of the Company’s headquarters from Cyprus to Greece. On 18 September 2022,
the amendment of the Company's Articles of Association due to the redomicile in Greece were approved
by the General Commercial Register Service of the Athens Chamber of Commerce & Industry (SEMI) and
on the same date the Company was registered with the General Commercial Register of the Hellehic
Republic, as a société anonyme under the registration number 164362401000.

THE AZUR SELECTION SA is incorporated in Gresce with an indefinite corporate life, the address of its
registered office is 19, Stratarchou Alexandrou Papagou Street, 16873 Voula, Athens, Greece and its web
address is www.azurselection.com,

The Company's ordinary shares were listed on the Cyprus Stock Exchange on the Emerging Companies
Market (E.C.M.) since 29 October 2020. On 27 May 2022, the Company decided to delist from the Cyprus
Stock Exchange In the perspective of its listing on Euronext Access+Paris. On 20 September 2022, the
Company’s shareholders approved the listing of the Company's ordinary shares on Euronext Access+Paris.
Since-22 November 2022 the Company is traded under the ticker MLAZR. The majority shareholder of the
parent company holding 84% (as at 31 December 2023} is Mr George Arvanitakis.

Basad on its articles of incorporation, the primary activities of the Company are to participate to the share
capital of selected hote! groups located mainly in Greece and to act as lessor and operator. In addition,
other activities include:

- Rendering of advisoty services in relation to the organisation, administration and management of
hotels and other touristic units-

- Construction, repair and maintenance, administration, development and management of bars,
restaurants, coffae shops, clubs, casinos and commercial shops.

- Acquisition, disposal, development, managanﬁent, lease of real estate properties
- Retail sale of food, beverages, books, and touristic products

- lease of beach umbrellas, sunbeds and chairs

- Lease of parking spaces, cars and vans

- Qperation of hairgressing, sauna and spa facilities

The accompanying consolidated financial statements were approved for issuanca by the Board of Directors
on 16 April 2024.

2. Basis of preparation

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial

- Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union (EU). These consolidated financial

statements have been preparad under the historical cost convention,

The consolidated financial statements are presentsd in euros (€) rounded to the nearest value, except
when otherwise indicated. :

In determining the appropriate basis of preparation of the consclidated and Company’s financial
statements, the Directors are required to consider whether the Group and the Company can.continue in
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operational existence for the foreseeablse future. It is hoted that since the actlvity of the Company is directly
related to the activity of its subsidiaries, the assessment of the going concern principla of the Company is
directly related to the going concern of the Group. The future financial performance of the Group is
dependent upon the wider economic environment and factors that particularly affect the environment and
therefore the performance of the Group include macroaconomic conditions and supply and demand of
touristic product and the value of the hotellng assets.

The preparation of the Group’s consclidated financial statements raquires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets
and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty
about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material judgement in the
carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods. Actual results may differ from those
estimates. Estimates are based on management’s previous experience including expectations of future
events under normal conditions.

The aforementioned judgments, estimates and assumptions are periodically re - assessed in order to be in
line with current avaifabie data and reflect current risks. When applying the Group's accounting policies,
management has made the following judgments, estimates and assumpticns that may have a significant
impact cn the items reported in the financial statements:

Deferred tax assets: Deferred tax assels are recognlzed: for all unused tax fosses and deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which the
losses or deductible diferences can be utilized. Significant management |udgement is required to
determine the amount of deferred taxt assets that can be recognized, based upon the likely timing and the
level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies.

Right of use assets: On the baginning date of the leasing period, a right of use asset and a liability are
recognized by calculating the present value of leases which remain unpaid, discounted with leasing interest
rate (interest rate which would be accepted by the lessee in order ta borrow all necessary funds with similar
terms). The Group determinas the leasing duration as the contractual leasing duration, including the period
which is covered by a) the right to extend leasing if it is almost sure that it will be exercizged, or b) the right
to terminate the contract if it is almost sure that it witl be exercised. The Group implements a single discount
rate at each leasing category with similar characteristics (as leasing with similar duration, assets and
ecohomic environment). Afterwards, the asset ls measured at cost [ess depreciation and any impairment
losses while, the liability is measured by increasing book value with interest expenses on the liability and
by decreasing book value with leases payment,

Useful life of property plant and equipment: Management makes estimates when determining the useful
life of depreciable assets. Such estimates are pericdically reviewed.

Determination of cash generating units for impairment testing: For the purposes of its impairment
testing the Company identifies each cash genearating unit (“CGU") which represents the smallest identifiable
group of assets that generates cash inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows from other
assets or groups of assets. In determining the CGUs the Group considers various factors including
management's marketing and trading strategies and natura and terms of contractual arrangements, The
Group also considers other factors such as investment and discontinuance decisions, and how
management monitors financial performance.

The defermination as fo whethar the cash inflows of groups of products which form a CGU are largely
dependent on each other requires judgment to be exercised in assessing all the available data and
information noted above, particularly with reference to assumptions and judgments regarding future
planned and expected marketing and trading strategies. Should these judgments be proven, through the
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passage of time, to be Incorrect or subjec{ to change or amendment in future pariods it is possible that
impairment chargas may arise, or reversals of impalrments may occur.

3. Adoption of new or revised standards and interpretations

The Company applied for the first-time certain standards and amendments, which are effective for annual

periods beginning on or after 1 January, 2023 (unless otherwise stated). The Company has not early

adopted any other standard, interpretation or amendment that has been issued but is not yet affective.

The standards and interpratations listed below have become effective since 1 July, 2022, for annual periods

beginning on or after 1 January, 2023. While the list of new standards is provided below, not all of these

new standards have an impact on these consolidated financial statements.

. IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts

. Definitlon of Accounting Estimates — Amendments to IAS 8

Il. Disclosure of Accounting Policias — Amendments to IAS 1 and IFRS Practice Statemant 2

IV. Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction — Amendments to IAS
12 :

V. International Tax Reform—Pillar Two Model Rules — Amendments to IAS 12

. IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts IFRS 17: Insurance Contracts is a comprehensive new accounting
standard for insurance contracts covering recognition and measurement, prasentation and disclosure,
IFRS 17 raplaces IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts. IFRS 17 applies to all types of insurance contracts {i.e.,
life, non-life, direct insurance and re-insurance), regardless of the type of entities that issue them as
well as to certain guarantees and financial instruments with discretionary participation featuras; a few
scope exceptions will apply. The overall objective of IFRS 17 's {0 provide a comprehensive accounting
maodel for insurance contracts that Is more useful and consistent for insurers, covering all relevant
accounting aspects. IFRS 17 is based on a general model, supplemented by:

« A specific adaptation for contracts with direct participation features (the variable fee approach)
« A simplified approach {the premium allocation approach) mainly for short-duration contracts
The new standard had no impact on the Company's financial statements.

. Definition of Accounting Estimates - Amendments to IAS 8: The amendments to I1AS 8 clarify the
distinction bstween changes in accounting estimates, changes in accounting policies and the
correction of errors. They also clarify how entities use measurement technigues and inputs to develop
accounting estimates. The amendments had no impact on the Company’s financial statements.

lil. Disclosure of Accounting Policies ~ Amendments to 1AS 1 and IFRS Practice Statement 2: The
amendments to IAS 1 and IFRS Practice Statement 2 Making Materiality Judgements provide
guidance and examples to help entities apply materiality judgements to accounting policy disclosures.
The amendments aim to help entities provide accounting policy disclosures that are more useful by
replacing the requirement for entites to disclose their ‘significant’ accounting policies with a
requirement fo disclose their ‘material accounting policies and adding guidance on how entities apply
the concept of materiality in making decisions about accounting policy disclosures. The amendments
have had an impact on the Company's disclosures of accounting policies, but not on the measurement,
recoghition or presentation of any items in the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

IV. Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from & Single Transaction — Amendments to |AS
12: The amendments to |IAS 12 Income Tax narrow the scope of the initial recognition exception, so
that it no longer applies to transactions that give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary
differences such as leases and decommissioning liabilities. The amendments had no impact on the
Group’s consolidated financial statemants,

V. International Tax Reform—Pillar Two Medel Rules — Amendments to IAS 12: The amendments ta IAS
12 have bean introduced in response to the OECD's BEFS Pillar Two rules and include:
« A mandatory temporary exception to the recognition and disclosure of deferred taxes arising from
the jurisdictional implementation of the Pillar Two model rules; and
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» Disclosure requirements for affected entitles to help users of the financial statements better

understand an entity’s exposure to Pillar Two income taxes arising from that legislation, particularly
before its effactive date, .
The mandatory temporary exception — the use of which is required to be disclosed — applies
immediately. The remaining disclosure requirements apply for annual reporting periods beginning
onh or after 1 Janhuary, 2023, but not for any interim periods ending on or befora 31 December, 2023.
The amendments had no impact on the Company’s financial statements as the Company is not in
scope of the Pillar Two model rules as its revenue is less that EUR 750 million/year,

4. Significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these consclidated financlal statements are
set out below. These policies have been consistently applied to all years presented in these consolidated
financial statements unless otherwise statad.

Basis of consolidation

The Group consolidatad financial statements comprise the financlal statements of the parent company
THE AZUR SELECTICN S.A. and the financial statements of its subsidiarias, as described In Note 17.

The financial statements of all tha Group companies are prepared using uniform accounting policies. All
inter-company transactions and balances between Group companies have been eliminated during
consolidation.

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the acquisition method. The conslderation transferred
in a business combination Is measurad at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date
fair values of the assets transfarrad by the Group, liabilities incurred by the Group to the former owners of
the acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree.
Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised In profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition dafe, the Identifiable assets acquired, and the liabilities assumed are racognised at their
fair value at tha acquisttion date, except that:

. deferred tax assets or liabilities and liabilities or assets related to employee benefit arrangements
are recognised and measured in accordance with IAS 12 Income Taxes and IAS 19 Employee
Benefits respectively,

. liabilities or equity instruments related to share-hased payment arrangements of the acquiree or
share-based payment arrangements of the Group enterad into to replace share-based payment
arrangements of the acquiree are measured In accordance with IFRS 2 Share-based Payment at
the acquisition date; and

«  assefs (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for sale in accordance with IFRS &
Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinuad Operations are measured in accordance with
that Standard,

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interssts in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer's previously held equity interest
in the acquiree (if any) over the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed. If, after reassessment, the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable
assets acquired and liablilities assumed exceeds the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of
any non-controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer's previocusly held interest in
the acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate
share of the entity's net assets in the evant of liguidation may be initially maasured elther at fair value or at
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the non-controlling interests” proportionate share of the recognised amounts of the acquiree's identifiable
nat assets. The choice of measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-transaction basis. Other types
of non-controliing interasts are measured at fair value or, when applicable, on the basls specifiad in ancther
IFRS. .

When the conslderation fransferred by the Group in a business combinaticn includes assets or liabilities
resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement, the contingent consideration is measured at its
acquisition-date fair value and included as part of the consideration fransferred in a business combination.
Changes in the fair value of the confingent consideration that qualify as measurement period adjustments
are adjusted retrospectively, with corresponding adjustments against goodwil. Measurament period
adjustments are adjustments that arise from addltional information obtained during the 'measurement
perlod’ (which cannot exceed one year from the acquisition date) about facts and clrcumstances that
existed at the acquisition date. :

The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair value of the contingent consideration that do not qualify
as measurement period ad|ustments depends on how the contingent consideration is classified. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity s not remeasured at subsequent reporting dates and its
subsequent settiement is accounted for within equity. Contingent consideration that i classified as an
asset or a liability is remeasured at subsequent reporting dates in accordance with 1AS 39, or IAS 37
Provisions, Contingent Liabllities and Contingent Assets, as appropriate, with the corresponding gain or
loss being recognised in profit or loss.

When a business combination is achieved In stages, the Group's previously held equity interest in the
acquiree is remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date (i.e. the date when the Group obtains control)
and the resulting gain or loss, if any, is recognised in profit or loss. Amounts arising from interesis In the
aeguires prior to the acquisition date that have previously been recognised in other comprehensiva income
are reclassified to profit or loss where such treatment would be appropriate If that interest were disposad
of.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete by the end of the reporting perlod in which
the combination occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts for the items for which the accounting is
incomplete. Those provisional amounts are adjusted during the measurerment period (see above), or
additional assets or [abilities are recognised, to reflect new information ebtalned about facts and
circumstances that existed at the acquisition date that, if known, would have affected the amounts
recognised at that date. '

Investments in associates

An associate is an entlty over which the Group has significant influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor
an interest in a joint venture. Significant influsnce is the power to participate in the financial and operating
policy decisions of the investes but is not centrol or jeint control over those policies.

The rasults and assets and liabilities of associates are incorporated in these consolidated financial
statements using the equity method of acceunting, except when the investinent is classified as hald for
sale, in which case it is accounted for in accordance with IFRS § Non-current Assets Held for Sale and
Disconfinued Operations. Under the equity method, an investment in an associate is initially recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial position at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group's
share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income of the associate. When the Group's share of
losses of an associate exceeds the Group's interest in that assoclate (which includes any long-ferm
interasts that, in substance, form part of the Group's net investment in the associate), the Group
discontinues recognising its share of further losses. Additional losses are recognised only to the extent that
the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate.

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiabie assets,
liabilities and contingent liabllites of an associate recognised at the date of acquisition is recognised as
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goodwill, which is included within the carrying amount of the investment. Any excass of the Group's share
of the net fair value of the identifiable assets, fiabilities and contingent Habilitles over the cost of acquisition,
after reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The requirements of IAS 38 are applied to determine whether it Is necessary to recognise any impairment
loss with respect to the Group's investment in an associate. When nacessary, the entire carrying amount
of the investment {including gocdwill) is tested for Impairment In accardance with I1AS 36 as a single asset
by comparing its recoverable amount (hgher of value in use and fair value less costs to sell) with its carrying
amount. Any impairment loss recognised forms part of the carrving amount of the investment, Any reversal
of that impairment loss is recognised in accordence with IAS 36 to the extant that the recoverable amount
of the investment subsequently incraases.

When a group entity transacts with its associate, profits and losses resuliing from tha transactions with the
associate are racognised in the Group's consolidated financial statements only to the extent of interests in
the associate that are not related to the Group.

Goodwlli

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over the fair value of the Group's share of the
net identifiable assets of the acquired undertaking at the date of acquisition. Goodwill on acquisition of
subsidiarles is included in “intangible assets". Goodwill on acquisitions of associates ig included in
"Investments in associates". Goodwill on acquisitions of investments in joint ventures Is included in
"investments in joint ventures",

Goodwill is tested annually for impairment and carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses, Galns
and losses on the disposal of an undertaking include the carrying amount of goodwill relating to the
underiaking seld. Goedwill is allocated to cash-genarating units for the purpose of impairment testing.

Any excess of the interest in the net fair value of acquiree's identifiable assets, liabilittes and contingent
liabilities over cost is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Segmental reporting

The Group operates only in Greece and for this reason operations are not analysed by geographical
segment. The Group reports financial information and evaluates its operations by one reportable segment,
The Group's revenue is analysed in Note 7,

Revenue
Recognition and measurement .

Revenue represents the amount of consideraticn to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange
for transferring the promised goods or services to the customer, excluding amaounts collected on behalf of
third parties (for example, value-added taxes); the transaction price. The Group incluides in the transaction
price an amount of variable consideration as a result of rebates/discounts only tc the extent that it is highly
probable that a significant reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur when
the uncertainty associated with the variable consideration is subsequently resalved. Estimations for rebates
and discounts are based on the Group's experience with similar contracts and forecasted sales to the
customer.

The Group recognises revenue when the parties have approved the contract (in writing, orally or in
accordance with other custornary business practices ) and are committed to perform their respective
obligations, the Group can identify each party's rights and the payment terms for the goods or services to
be transferred, the contract has commercial substance {i.e. the risk, timing or amount of the Group's future
cash flows is expected to change as a result of the contract), it is probable that the Group will collect the
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consideration to which It will be entitled in exchange for the goods or services that will be transferred to the
customer and when specific criteria have been met for each of the Group’s contracts with customers.

The Group bases its estimates on historical resuits, taking into consideration the type of customer, the type
of transaction and the specifics of each arrangement. In evaluating whether collectability of an amount of
consideration is probable, the Group considers only the customer's abifity and intention to pay that amount
of consideration when it is due.

Estimates of revenues, costs or extent of prograss toward completicn are revised if circumstances change.
Any resulting increases or decreases In estimates are reflected In.the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and othier comprehensive income in the periad in which the circumstances that give rise to the revision
become known by Management.

Identification of performance obligations

The Group assesses whether contracts that involve the provision of a range of goods and/or services
contain one or more performance obligations (that is, distinct promises to provide a service) and allocates
the transaction price to each performance obligation identified on the basis of its stand-alone selling price.
A goad or service that is promisad to a customer ig distinct if the customer can benefit from the good or
servica, aeither on its own or together with other resources that are readily available to the customer (that
is the good or service is capable of being distinct) and the Group's promise to transfer the good or service
to the customer is separately identifiable from other promises in the contract (that is, the good or service is
distinct within the context of the contract).

Revenue i measured based on the consideration to which the Group expacts to be entitled in a contract
with a customer and excludes amounts collected on behalf of third parties. The Group recognises revenue
when it transfers control of a product or service to a customer.

. Sals of products

Sales of products are recognised at the point in time when the Group satisfies its performance
abligation by transferring control over the promised products to the customer, which is usually when
the products are delivered to the customer, risk of obsolescence and loss have heen fransfarred to
the customer and the customer has accepted the products. '

. Rendering of services

Rendering of services - over time:

Revenue from rendering of services is recognised over time while the Group satisfies its
performance obligation by transferring control over the promised setvice to the customer in the
accounting period in which the services are rendered,

For fixed price contracts, revenus is recognised based on the actual service provided to the end of
the reporting period as a proportion of the total services to be provided because the customer
receives and uses the benefits simultaneously.

The input method is Lised to measurs progress toward completion of the performance obligation as
it provides a faithful depiction of the transfer of the control of the services to the customer.

Rendering of servives - al a point in time:
The Group concluded that it-transfers control ever its services at a point in tima, upon receipt by
the customer of the service, because this is when the customer benefits from the relevant service,
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. Work executed

Work executed is recognised in the accounting period in which the work is carried out by reference
to completion of the specific transaction assessed on the basis of the actual work executed
provided as a proportion of the total work o be carried out.

. Rental income

Rental income is recognised on ah accrual basis in accordance with the substance of the relevant
agreemsents. '

. Interest income

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis using the sffective interest method.

Employee benefits

The Group and its employees contribute to the Govermment Social Insurance Fund based on employees’
salaries. The Group's contributions are expensed as incurred and are included in staff costs. The Group
has no legal or constructive abligations 1o pay further contributions if the scheme does not hold sufflclent
assets to pay all employees benefits relating to employes sarvice in the current and prior periods.

Finance costs

Interest expense and other borrowing costs are charged fo profit or loss as incurred.

Tax

Current income tax: Current incoms tax assets and liahilities are measured at the amount expected to be
recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount
are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date in the countries whare the Group
operates and generates taxablz income.

Current income tax relating to items recognized directly in equity is recognized in equity and not in the
statement of comprehensive income (income statement cemponent). Management periodically evaluates
positions taken in the tax returns with respect o situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject
to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Deferred tax: Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting
data.

Deferred tax liabllitles are recognized for all taxable temporary differences, except:

- When the deferred tax liability arlses from the initiat recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in
a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss

- In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with Investments in subsidiaries, associates
and interests in joint ventures, when the timing of tha reversal of the tamporary differences can be
controlled and it Is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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Deferrad tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused
tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferrad tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward
of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be ulllized, except:

- When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary differance arises from the initial
recagnition of an assat or liabllity In a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time
of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

- In respect of deduciible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and interests in joint ventures, deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that
it Is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foresesable future and taxable profit
will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of defarred tax assets Is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced fo the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred
tax asset to be utilized. Uriracognized deferred tax assets are re-assessad at each reporting date and are
recoghized to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.

Defarred tax assets and liabilities are measurad &t the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when
the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognized outside the statement of comprehensive income (income
statement component) is recognized outside the statement of comprehensive income (income statement
component). Deferred tax items are recognized in correlation to the underlying transaction either in Other
Comprehensive Income or directly in Equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enfarceable right exists to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabiites and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the
same taxation authority.

Property, plant and e¢qulpment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and any
accumulated impairment losses.

No depreciation is provided on land.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated over the shorter period of lease term and useful life of the underlying
asset, If a lease transfers ownership of the underlying asset or the cost of the right-of-use asset reflects
that the Group expects to exercise a purchase option, the related right-of-use asset is depreciated over the
usefu! life of the underlying asset. Tha depreciation starts at the commencement date of the lease.

The assets rasidual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each reporting
date. '

Where the carrying amount of an asset is greater than its estimated recoverable amount, the asset is
written down immediately to ifs recoverable amount.

Expenditure for repairs and maintenance of property, plant and equipment is charged to profit or loss for
the year in which it is incurred. The cost of major renovations and other subsequent expenditure are
included in the carrying ameunt of the asset when it is probable that future econcmic bensfits in excess of
the originally assessed standard of performance of the existing asset will flow to the Group. Major
renovations are depreciated aver the remaining useful life of the related asset.
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An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected to arlse from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal
or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Defarrad Income

Deferred income represents income receipts which relate fo future periods.

Investment properties

Investment property, principally comprising shops and office bulldings, is held for long-term rental yields
and/or for capital appreciation and iz not occupied by the Group. Investment property Is treated as a
non-current asset and is stated at historical cost less depreciation. Depraciation is calculated on the
straight-line method so as to write off the cost of cach asset to Its residual value over its estimated useful
life.

An investment property is derecoghised upen disposal or when the investment property Is permanently
withdrawn from use and ne futurs economic benefits are expected from the continued use of the asset,
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the property (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in profit or loss in the period in which
the property is derecognised.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measurad on initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible
assets acquired in a business combination is fair value as at the date of acquisition. Following initial
recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment lesses. Internally generated intangible assets, excluding capitalised development costs, are
not capitalised and expenditure is reftected in profit or loss in the year in which the expenditure is incurred.
The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinita. .

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment
whenever thera is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the
amortisation method for an infangible asset with a finite useful life is reviewed at lsast at sach financlal
year end. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic
benefits emhedied in the asset is accounted for by changing the amortisation period or method, as
approptiate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The amortisation expense on intangible
assets with finite lives is recognised in profit or loss in the expense category consistent with the function of
the infangible asset.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment annually either individually or at the
cash generating unit level. Such infangibles are not amortised. The useful life of an intangible asset with
an indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine whether indefinite life assessment continues to be
supportable. If nct, the change in the useful life assessment from indefinite to finite is made on a prospective
basis.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference batwasn

the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in profit or loss when
tha asset is derecognised.

Leases

At incaption of a contract, the Group assessas whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or
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contains, a Isase if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration. To agsess whether a contract conveys the right to contral the use of an
identified asset, the Group assesses whether:
- the contract involves the use of an identified asset - this may be specified explicitly or Implicity, and
should be physically distinct or represent substantially all of the capacity of a physically distinct asset.
If the supplier has a substantive substitution right, then the asset is not identified;
— the Group has the right to obtain substantlally all of the economic benefits from use of the asset
throughout the period of use; and
- the Group has the right to direct the use of the asset. The Group has this right when it has the
decision-making rights that are most ralevant to changing how and for what purpose the asset is used.
In rare cases where the declsion about how and for what purpose the asset is used is predetermined,
the Group has the right o direct tha use of the assst if sither:
— the Group has the right to operate the asset; or
~ the Group designed the asset in a way that predetermines how and for what purpose it will be
used.

Af inception or on reassessment of a contract that contains a lease component, the Group allocates the

consideration in the contract to each lease component on the basis of their relative stand-alons prices.
However, for the leasas of land and.buildings in which it is a lessee, the Group has elected not o separate
non-lease componsnts and account for the lease and non-lease components as a single iease component.

The Group as lgssor

When the Group acts as a lessar, it determines at lease inception whether each Isase is a finance lease
or an operating lease.

To classify each lease, the Group makes an overall assessment of whether the lease transfers substantially
all of the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the underlying assef, If this is the case, then the
leasa is a finance lease; if not, then it is an operating lease. As part of this assessment, the Group considers
certain indicators such as whether the lease is for the major part of the economic life of the asset.

When the Group is an intermediate lassor, It accounts for its interests in the head lease and the sub-lease
scparately. It assesses the lease classification of a sub-lease with reference to the right-of-use asset arising
from the head lease, not with reference to the underlying asset. If a head lease is a short-term lease to
which the Group applies the exemplion described above, then it classifies the sub-lease as an operating
lease.

If an arrarigement contains lease and non- Iaase components, the Group applies IFRS 15 to allocate the
consideration in tha contract.

The Group recognises lease payments received undar operating leases as income on a straight-line basis
avar the lease term as part of 'other income’,

The accounting policies applicable to the Group as a lessor in the comparative period were not different
from IFRS 16. However, when the Group was an intermediate lessor the sub-leases were classified with
reference to the underlying asset.

The Group as lessee

The Group recognises a right-of-use asset and a Isase liability at the lease commencement date. The
right-of-use asset Is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the leasa liability
adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs
incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying
asset or the site on which it is located, less any lease incentives received,

The right-of-use asset is subsequently depraciated using the stralght-line method from the commencement

23



THE AZUR SELECTION S.A.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2023

date to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of-use asset or the end of the lease term. The
estimated useful lives of the right-of-use assets are determined on the same basls as those of property
and equipment. In addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced by impairment losses, if any, and
adjusted for certaln remaasuremants of tha lsase liability.

The lease liabllity is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the
commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot ba readily
determined, the Group's incremental borrowing rate.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprige the following:

- fixed payments, including in-substance fixed payments;

- variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, inifially measured using the index or rate
as at the commencement date;

- amounts expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee; and

- the exercise price under a purchase option that the Group is reasonably certaln to exercise, lease
payments in an optional renewal period if the Group is reasonably certain to exercise an extension
option, and penatties for early termination of a lease unless the Group is reasonably certain not to
terminate early.

The lease liability is measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. It is remeasured when
thera is a change in future lease payments arising from a change in an index or rate, if there is a change
in the Group's estimate of the amount expectad to be payable under a residual value guarantee, or if the
Group changes its assessment of whether it will exercise a purchase, extension or termination option.

When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying
amount of the right-of-use asset or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amaount of the right-of-use
asset has been reduced to zero. '

The Group presents its right-of-use assets that do not meet the definition of investment property in
'Property, plant and equipment’ in the consolidated statement of financial position.

The lease liabilities are presented in 'leans and borrowings' in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group has elected not to recognise the right of use assets and lease liabilities for short term leases
that have a lease term of 12 months or [ess and leases of low value assets {i.e. IT equipment, office
equipment etc.). The Group recognises the leasa payments associated with these leases as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lzase term.

impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indsfinite useful life are not subject to amortisation and are tested annuaily for
impairment. Assets that are subject to depreciation or amortisation are reviewed for impaiment whenever
evenis or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An
impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the highar of an asset's fair value less costs to sell and value in use.
For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are
separately identifiable cash flows {cash-generating units). Non financial assets, other than goodwill, that
have suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each reperting date.
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Financial assets

Financial assets - Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categoties:
. those to be measured subsequently at fair value {either through OCI or through profit ar loss), and
’ those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification and subsequent measurement of debt financial assets depends on: (i} the Group's
business model for managing the related assets portfolio and (i) the cash flow characteristics of the asset.
On initial recognition, the Group may imevocably designate a debt financlal agset that otherwise meets the
requirements to be measured at amortized cost or at FVOCI or at FVTPL If dolng so eliminates or
significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.

For investments in equity instruments that are not held for trading, the classification will depend on whether
the Group has made an irrevocable election at the time of initial recognition to account for the equity
Investment at fair value through other comprehansive income (FVCCI). This election is made on an
investment-by-investment basis.

All other financial assets are classified as measured at FVTPL.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will efther be recorded in profit or loss or OCI. For
investments in equity instruments that are not held for trading, this will depend on whether the Group has
made an Irrevocable election at the time of initial recognition to account for the equity invesiment at fair
value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI).

Financial assets - Recognition and derecognition

All purchases and sales of financial assets that require delivery within the time frame estahlished by
regulation or market convention ("regular way" purchases and sales) are recorded at trade date, which is
the date when the Group commits to deliver a financial instrument. All other purchases and sales are
recognised when the entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets are defecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets have

expired or have been transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership.

Financial assets - Measurement

At initlal recognition, the Group measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial
asset not at Tair value through profit or loss (FVTPL), transaction costs that are directly attrlbutable to the
acquisition of the financial asset. Tranisaction costs of financial assets carried at FVTPL are expensed in
profit or loss. Fair value at initial recognition is best evidenced by the transaction price. A gain or loss on
initial recognition is only recorded if there is a difference between fair value and transaction price which
¢an be evidenced by other cbservable current market transactions in the same instrument or by a valuation
technique whose inputs include only data from ohservable markets.

Financial assets with embedded derlvatives are considered intheir entirety when determining whethear their
cash flows are solely payment of principal and interest.

Financial assets - impairment - credit loss allowance for ECL

The Group assesses on a forward-looking basis the ECL for debt instruments (including loans) measured
at amortised cost and FVOCI and exposure arising from loan commitments and financial guarantee
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contracts. The Group measures ECL and recognlses credit ioss allowance at each reporting date. The
measurement of ECL reflects: (i) an unbiased and probability weightad amount that is determined by
evaluating a range of possible outcomes, {ii) time value of money and (ili) all reasonable and supportakle
infermation that is available without undue cost and effort at the end of each reporting period about past
events, current conditions and ferecasts of future conditions.

The carrying amount of the financial assets is reduced through the use of an allowance account, and the
amount of the loss is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income within "net impairment losses on financial and contract assets. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
for which loss allowance was previously recognised are credited against the same line item.

Debt instruments carried at amortised cost are presented in the consolidated statement of financial position
net of the allowancae for ECL. Fer loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts, a separate provision
for ECL is recognized as a liability in the consalidated statament of financial position.

For debt instruments at FVQOCI, an allowance for ECL. Is recoghised in profit or loss and it affects fair value
gains or losses recognised in OCI rather than the camying amount of thosae instruments.

The impairment methodelogy applied by the Group for calculating expected credit losses depends on the
type of financial asset assessed for impairment, Specifically:

For trade receivables and contract assets, including trade receivables and contract assets with a significant
financing component, and lease recelvables the Group applies the simplified approach permitted by IFRS
9, which requires lifetime expected credit losses to ba recognised from inltial recognition of the financial
assets,

For all other financial instruments that are subject to impairment under IFRS 9, the Group applles general
approach - three stage model for impairmant. The Group applies a three-stage model for impairment,
based on changes in credit quality since initial recognition. A financial instrument that is not credit-impaired
on initial recognition is classified in Stage 1.

Financial assets in Stage 1 have their ECL measured at an amount equal to the portion of lifatime ECL
that results from default events possible within the next 12 manths or until contractual maturity, if shorter
("12 Months ECL"). If the Group identifies a significant increase in credit risk ("SICR") since initial
recoghition, the asset is transferred to Stage 2 and its ECL is measured based on ECL on a lifetime basis,
that Is, up until contractual maturity but considering expected prepayments, if any ("Lifetime ECL™). Refer
to note 6, Credit risk sectlon, for a description of how the Group determines when a SICR has occurred. If
the Group determines that a financial asset is credit-impaired, the asset is transferred to Stage 3 and its
ECL is measured as a Lifetime ECL. The Group's definition of credit impaired assets and definition of
default is explained in note 8, Credit risk section.

Additionally the Group has decided to use the low credit risk assessment exemption for investment grade

financial assets. Refer to note 6, Credit risk section for 2 description of how the Group determines low
credit risk financial assets.

Financial assats -Reclassification
Financial instruments are reclassified only when the business madel for managing those assets changes.

The reclassification has a prospactive effect and takes place from the start of the first reporting period
following the change.

Financlal assets - write-off

Financial assets are written-off, in whole or in part, when the Group exhaustad all practical recovery efforts
and has concluded that there is no reasonable expectation of recovery. The write-off represents a
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derecognition event. The Group may write-off financial assets that are still subject to enforcement activity
when the Group seeks to recover amounts that are contractually due, however, there is no reasonable
expectation of recovery.

Financial assets - modification

The Group sometimes renegotiates or otherwise modifias the contractusl tarms of the financial assets, The
Group assesses whethar the modification of contractual cash flows is substantial considering, among other,
“the following factors: any new coniractual terms that substantially affect the risk profile of the asset (e.g.
profit share or equity-based return), significant change In interest rate, change in the currency
denomination, new collateral or credit enhancement that significantly affects the credit risk associated with
the asset or a significant extension of a loan when the borrower is not in financial difficuities.

If the medified terms are substantially different, the rights to cash flows from the original asset expire and
the Group derecognises the original financial asset and recognises 2 new asset at lis fair value. The date
of renegotiafion is considered to be the date of Inltial recognition for subsequent impairment calculation
purposes, including determining whether a SICR has occurred. The Group also assesses whether the new
loan or debt instrument meets the SPPI criterion. Any difference between the carrying amount of the
original asset derecognised and fair value of the new substantially modified asset is recognisad in profit or
loss, unless the substance of the difference is attrlbuted to a capital transaction with owners.

In a situation where the renegotiation was driven by financial difficulties of the counterparty and inabillty to
make the originally agreed payments, the Group compares the original and revised expected cash flows
to assots whether tha risks and rewards of the asset are substantially different as a result of the contractual
modification. If the risks and rewards do not change, the modified asset is not substantially different from
the original asset and the modification doses not result in derecognition. The Group recalculates the gross
carrying amount by discounting the modified contractual cash flows by the original effective interest rate,
and racognises a modification gain or loss. in profit or loss.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on
hand, deposits held at call with banks and bank overdrafts. In the consalidated statement of financial
position, bank overdrafts are included in borrowings in current liabilities. Cash and cash equivalents are
carried at amortised cost because; (i) they are held for collection of contractual cash flows and those cash
flows represent SPPI, and (i) they are not designated at FVTPL. '

Classiflcation as financial assets at amortised cost

These amounts genetally arise from transactions outside the usual operating activities of the Group. They
are held with the objective to collect their contractual cash flows and their cash flows represent solsly
payments of principal and interest. Accordingly, these are measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less provision for impairment. Financial assels at amortised cost are classified as current
assets if they are due within one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the business if longer). If
not, they are presented as non-currsnt assets.

Classification as trade receivables

Trade receivables are amaunts due from customers for goods sold or services performead in the erdinary
course of business. if collection is expected In one year or less (or in the normal operating cycls of the
business if Jonger), they are classified as current assets. If not, they are presented as non-current assets.
Trade receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less loss allowanca.

Trade receivables are recognised initiatly at the amount of consideration that is unconditional unless they
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contain significant financing compenents, in which case they are recognised at fair valug. The Group holds
the trade receivables with the objective to collect the contractual cash flows and therefore measures them
gubsequently at amortised cost using the effective interest mathod.

Trade receivables are also subject to the Impairment requirements of IFRS 9. The Group applies the IFRS
9 simplified approach to measuring expected credit losses which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance
for all trade receivables. See note 6, Credit risk section.

Trade receivables are written off when there is no reasonabla expectation of recovery. Indicators that there
is no reasonable expectation of recovery include, amongst others, the failure of a debtor to engage in a
repaymant plan with the Group, and a failure to maka contractuat payments for a period of greater than
180 days past due.

Financial guarantee coniracts

Financlal guarantee contracts are contracts that require the Group to make specified payments fo
reimhburse the helder of the guarantee for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment
when due in accordance with the terms of debt instrument. Such financial guarantees are given to banks,
financial tnstitutions and othars on hehalf of customers to secure loans, overdrafts and other banking
facllities.

Financial guarantees are recognised as a financial liability at the time the guarantee is issued,

Financial guarantees are initially recognised at their fair value, which is normally evidenced by the amount
of faes raceived. !n the absence of fees received, the fair value of financial guarantzes is determined based
on the present value of the difference in cash flows befween the contractuzal payments required under the
debt instrument and the payments that would be required without the guarantee, or the estimated amount
that would be payable to a third party for assuming the obligations.

Financial guarantees are subsequently measured at the higher of {i) the amount determined in accordance
with the expected credit loss model under IFRS 9 "Financial Instruments”, and (li} the amount initially
recognised less, where appropriate, the cumulative amount of income recognised in accordance with the
principles of IFRS 15 "Revenue from Contracts with customers”,

Financial liabilities - measurement categoriea

Financial liabilities are initially recognised at fair value and classified as subsequently measurad af
amortised cost, except for {i} financial liabilities at FVTPL: this classification is applizd to derivatives,
financial liabilities held for trading {e.g. short positions in securities), contingent consideration recognised
by an acquirer in a business combination and other financial liabilities designated as such at initial
recognition and (il) financial guarantee contracts and loan commitments.

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liabfity is discharged or cancelled or
expires. .

Borrowings

Borrowings are recorded initially at the proceeds recsived, net of transaction costs incurrad. Borrowings
are subsequently stated at amortised cost. Any difference between the proseeds (net of transaction costs)
and the redemption value is recognised in profit or foss over the period of tha borrowings using the effective
interest method.
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Share capltal

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Financial liabilities - Modifications

An exchange bstween the Group and its original lenders of debt instruments with substantially different
terms, as well as substantial modifications of the terms and conditions of existing financiai liabilties, are
accounted for as an extinguishment of the original financial liability and the recognition of a new financial
liabilty. The terms are substantially different if the discounted present value of the cash flows under the
new terms, including any fees paid net of any fess raceivaed and discounted using the original effactive
interest rate, is at least 10% different from the discounted present value of tha remaining cash flows of the
original financial liability. {In addition, other qualitative factors, such as the currency that the Instrument is
denominated in, changes in the type of interest rate, new conversion features attached to the instrument
and change in loan covenants are alsc considerad.)

if an exchange of debt instruments or modification of terms Is accounted for as an extinguishment, any
costs or fees incurred ars recognised as part of tha gain or loss on the extinguishment. If the exchange or
modification is not accounted for as an extinguishment, any costs or fees incurrad adjust the carrying
amount of the liability and are amortised over the remaining term of the modified liability.

Medifications of Habilities that do not result in extinguishment are accounted for as a change in estimate
using a cumulativa catch up method, with any gain or loss recognised in profit or loss, unless the economlc
substance of the difference in carrying values is attributed to a capital transaction with owners and is
recognised directly to equity. '

Borrowing cosis are Interest and other costs that the Group incurs in connection with the borrowing of
funds, including interest on borrowings, amortisation of discounts or premium relating to borrowings,
amortisation of ancillary costs incurred in connaction with the arrangement of borrowings, finance lease
charges and exchange differences arising from foreign currency borrowings to the extent that they are
regarded as an adjustment fo interest casis.

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a gualifying
asset, being an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or
sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset, when it is probable that they will result in fufure
economic benefits to the Group and the costs can ba measured reliably.

Offsetting financlal instruments

Financial assets and financial llabilities are offset, and the net.amount reported in the consclidated
statement of financial position if, and only if, there is a currenfly enforceable legal right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention {o settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the
ligbility simulianeously, This is not generally the case with master nefting agreements, and the related
assets and liabilities are presented gross in the consolidated statement of financial position.

Prepayments

Prepayments are carried at cost less provision for impairment. A prepayment is classified as non-current
when the goods or services relating fo the prepayment are expected to be obtained after one year, cr when
the prepayment relatas to an asset which will itself be classified as non-current upon initial recognition.
Prepayments to acquire assets are transferred to the carrying amount of the asset once the Group has
cbtained control of the asset and it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the asset will
flow to the Graup. Other prepayments are written off to profit or loss when the goods or services relating to
the prepayments are received, If there is an indication that the assets, goods or services relating to a
prapayment will not be received, the cairying value of the prepayment is written down accordingly and a
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corresponding impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past
events, it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable
astimate of the amount can be made. Where the Group expecis a provision to be reimbursed, for example
under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognised as & separate assst but only when the
reimbursement is virtually certain.

Non-current liabilities

Nen-current liabilities represent amounts that are due more than twelve months from the reporting date.

Alternative Parformance Measure (APM)

Under the implementation of ESMA Guidelines (05/10/2015|ESMA/2015/1418), the Group adopted as
Alternative Performance Measure (APM) the Adjusted Earnings Before Taxes, Interast Depreciation and
Amortizaticn (Adjusted EBITDA). Alternative Performance Measures (APMs) are useful to the management
and the investors as are used in the context of decision making for financial, cperational and strategic
planning as well as for the assessmant of parformance. APMs are taken Into account combined with
financial results which have been prepared according to IFRS and under no circumstances they replace
them. Adjusted EBITDA is not a recognized maasurement under [FRS.

Adjusted EBITDA remcves one-time, Irregular, and nen-recurring ltems that distort EBITDA. Adjusted
EBITDA represents Earnings before interest, taxas, depreciation, amortization, profit or loss from the
disposal of subsidiarias and impairment. More specifically, the reconciliation of the Adjusted EBITDA to the
financial statements of the Group for the respective years is as follows:

1.01.2023- 1.01.2022-
EBITDA 31.12.2023 31.12.2022
Profit {loss) before tax (7.895.890) 668.664
(+) Finance costs 440,814 231.814
(+) Depreciation and amortisation expense §72.859 855.953
Subtotal EBITDA (6.582.117) 1.756.451
(+) Goodwill Impairment 2.483.042 -
(+) L.oss on disposal of subsidiary 4.798.708 -
Adjusted EBITDA 689.634 1.756.451

Comparatives

Where necessary comparative figures have been adjusted 10 conform changes in presentation in the
current year. Goodwill on investments in associates amounting to €1.224.246 has bean reclassmed in
investment in associates from intangible assets.
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8. Financial risk management

Financial risk factors

The Group is exposed to interest rate risk, credlt risk, liquidity risk and capital risk management arising from
the financial instruments it holds. The risk management policies employed by the Group to manage these
ricks are discussed below:

5.1 Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the value of financial instruments will fluctuate due to changes in market
interest rates. The Group's income and operating cash flows are substantially independent of changes in
market interest rates as the Group has no significant interest-bearing. assets. The Group is exposed to
interest rate risk in relation to its non-current borrowings, Borrowings 1ssued at variable rates expose the
Group to cash flow interest rate risk. Barrowlngs (ssued at fixed rates expose the Group to fair value intarest
rate risk. The Company's Management monitors the interest rate fluctuations on a confinucus basis and
acis accordingly.

5.2 Credit risk '

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss for the other party
by failing to meet an obligation. Credit risk arises from [cash and cash equivalents, contractual cash flows
of debt investments carried at amortised cost, at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)
and at fair value through profit-or loss (FVTPL), favourable derivative financial Instruments and deposits
with barks and financial institutions, as well as credit exposures to wholesale and retail customars,
including outstanding receivables and contract assets as well as lease receivables. Further, credit risk
arises from financlal guarantees and credit related commitments.

(i} Risk management

Credit risk is managed on a group basis. For banks and financial institutions, the Group has established
policies whareby the majority of bank balances are held with independently rated parties with a minimum
rafing of ['C'T. :

I wholesale customers are independently rated, these ratings are used. Otherwise, if there is no
independent rating, Management assesses the credit quality of the customer, taking into account its
financial position, past experience and other facters. Individual credit limits and credit terms are set based
on the credit quality of the customer in accordance with limits set by the Board of Directors. The utilisation
of credit limits is regularly monitored. Sales to retail customers are settled In cash ar using major credit
cards.

There are no significant concentrations of cradit risk, whether through exposure to Individuat customers,
specific industry sectors and/or regions.

The Group's investments in debt instruments are considered to be low risk investments. The credit ratings
of the investments are monitcred for credit deterioration.

These policies enable the Group to reducs its credit risk significantly.

(i) Impairment of financial assets

The Group has the follewing types of financial assets that are subject to the expected credit loss model:
. trade receivables

) cash and c¢ash equivalents

. cradit commitments

The impairment methodology applied by the Group for calculating expected credit losses depends on the
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type of financlal asset assessed for impairment. Spacifically:

. For trade receivables the Group applies the simplified approach permitted by I[FRS 9, which
requires fifetime expected losses to be recognised from initial recognition of the financigl assets.
. For all other financial assets that are subject to impairment under IFRS 9, the Group applies

gensral approach - three stage model for impairment. The Group applies a three-stage model for
impairment, based on changes in credit quality since initial recognition. A financial asset that is
not credit-impaired on initial recognition Is classified in Stage 1. Financial assets in Stage 1 have
thelr ECL measured at an amount equal to the portion of lifetime ECL that results from default
events possible within the next 12 months or untit contractual maturity, if shorter ("12 Months
ECL"). If the Group identifies a significant increase in credit risk ("SICR"} since inifial recognition,
the assat is transferred to Stage 2 and its ECL is measured based on ECL on a lifetime basis, that
is, up until contractual maturity but considering expected prepayments, if any ("Lifetime EGL™. If
the Group determines that a financial asset is credit-impalred, the asset is transferred to Stage 3
and its ECL is measured as a Lifetime ECL.

Impairment losses are presented as net impairment losses on financial and contract assets within operating
profit. Subsequent recoverles of amounts previously written off are credited against the same line item.

Significant increase in credit Hsk

The Group considers the probability of default upon Inkial recognition of the asset and whether thers has
been a significant increase in credit risk on an cngoing basis throughout each reporting period. To assess
whether there is a significant increase in credit risk the Group compares the risk of a default cccurring on
the financial asset as at the reporting date with the risk of default as at the date of inltial recognition. It
considers available reasonable and supportive forwarding-looking information. Especially the following
indicators are incorporated:

. internal credit rating

. external credit rating {as far as available)

. actual or expected significant adverse changes in business, financial or economic conditions that
are expected 1o cause a significant change to the borrowet's/counterparty's ability to meet its
ohligations

actual or expected significant changes in the operating results of the borrower/counterparty
significant increases in cradit risk on other financial instruments of the same borrower/counterparty
significant changes in the value of the collateral supporting the obligation or in the quality of
third-party guarantees or cradit enhancements

. significant changes in the expected performance and behaviour of the barrower/counterparty,
including changes in the payment status of counterparty in the Group and changes in the
operating results of the borrower/counterparty.

Macroeconomic information (such as market interest rates or growth rates} is incorporated as part of the
internal rating model. The historical loss rates are adjusted to reflect current and forward-locking
information on macreeconomic factors affecting the abillty of the customers to settie the receivables. The
Group has identified the GDP and the unemployment rate of the cauntries in which it sells its goods and
services to be the most relevant factors, and accerdingly adjusts the historical loss rates based on expected
changes in these factors. No significant changes to estimation technigues or assumpticns were made
during the reporting period.

Regardless of the analysis above, a significant increase in credit risk is presumed if a debtor is more than
30 days past due in making a contractual payment.

Low credit risk

The Group has decided to use the low credit risk assessment exemption for investment grade financial
assets. Management consider 'low credit risk’ for listed bonds to be an investment grade credit rating with
at least ane major rating agency. Other instruments are considered to be low credit risk when they have a
low risk of default and the issuer has a strong capacity to meet its contractual cash flow obligations in the
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near term.
Defauit

A default on a financial asset is when the counterparty fails to make contractual payments within 90 days
of when they fall due.

Write-oif

Financial assets are wrltten off when there Is no reasonable expectation of recovery, such as a debtor
falling to engage in a repayment plan with the Group. The Group categorises & debt {inancial asset for
write off when a debtor fails fo make contractual payments greater than 180 days past dugs, Where debt
financial assats hava been written off, the Group continues to engage in enforcement activity to attempt to
recover the receivable due. Where recoveties are made, these are recognised in profit or loss.

The Group's exposure to credit risk for each class of (asset/instrument) subject to the expected credit loss
madel is set out below: :

Trade recelvables and contract assats

The Group applies the IFRS 9 simplified approach to measuring expected credit losses which uses 3
lifetime expected loss allowance for all trade receivables (including those with a significant financing
compeonent, lease recelvables and contract assets.

To measure the expected credit losses, trade recsivables and centract assets have been grouped based
on shared credit risk characteristics and the days past due, The contract assets relate fo unbilled work in
progress and have substantially the same risk characteristics as the trade receivables for the same types
of contracts. The Group has therefore concluded that the expected loss rates for trade receivables are a
reasonable approximation of the loss rates for the contract assets.

The expected loss rates are based on the payment profiles of sales over a period of 36 months-bafore 31
Dacember 2021 or 1 January 2022 respectively and the corresponding historical credit losses experienced
within this period. The historical loss rates are adjusted to reflect current and forward-looking information
on macroeconomic factors affacting the ability of the customers to setlle the receivables. The Group has
identified the GDP and the unemployment rate of the countrles in which It sells its goods and services to
be the most relevant factors, and accordingly adjusts the historical loss rates based on expected changes
in these factors. :

The average credit pericd on sales of goods or services is 60 days. No.interest is charged on outstanding
trade receivables.

The Group always measures the loss allowance for trade recsivablas at an amount equal to lifetime ECL.

There were no significant trade receivable and confract asset balances written off during the year that are
subject to enforcement activity.

Reaceivables from related parties

For receivables from related patties lifetime ECL was provided for them upon initial application of IFRS 9
until these financial assets are derecognised as it was determined on initial application of [FRS 9 that it
would require undue cast and effort to determine whether their credit risk has increased significantly since
initial recognition to the date of initial application of IFRS 8.

For any new loans to related parties, which are not purchased or ariginated cradit-impalred financial assets,
the impairment loss is recognised as. 12-month ECL on initial recognition of such instruments and
subsequently the Group assesses whether there was a signlficant increase in credit risk.
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The Group does not hold any collateral as security for any receivables from related parties.

There were no significant recelvables from related parties written off during the year that are subject to
anforcement activity.

Lease receivables

Management estimates the loss allowance on lease receivables at the end of the reporting period at an
amount equal to lifetime ECL.

None of the lease receivables at the end of the reporting peried is past due, and taking into account the
historical defauit experience and the future prospects of the industries in which the lessees operate,
together with the value of collateral held over these lease receivables, Management congider that no lease
raceivable is impairad.

There has been no change in the estimation techniques or significant assumptions made during the current
reporting period in assessing the loss allowance for lease receivables.

Collateral held as security and other credit enhancements

The Group does not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements to cover its credit risks associated
with its financial assets, except that the credit risk assocfated with finance lease receivables is mitigated
because they are securad over the leased store equipment.

There were no significant lease receivables written off during the year that are subject to enforcement
aclivity.

Cash and cash equivalents

The Group assesses, on a group basis, its exposure to credit risk arising from cash at bank. This
assessment takes into account, ratings from external credit rating institutions and internal ratings, if external
are not avallable.

Bank deposits held with banks with investment grade rating are considered as low credit risk,

The ECL on current accounts is considered to be approximate to Q, unless the hank is subject to capital
controls. The ECL on deposits accounts is calculated by considering published PDs for the rating as per
Moody's and an LGD of 40-60% as published by ECB.

Thea Group does not hold any collateral as security for any cash at bank balances.

There were no significant cash at bank balances written off during the year that are subject to enforcement
activity.

{iii} Credit rolated commitments

The primary purpose of these instruments is to ensure that funds are available to a borrower as required.
Guarantees which represent irrevocable assurances that the Group will make payments in the event that
a counterparty cannot meet its obligations to thivd parties, carry the same credit risk as loans receivable.
Commitments to extend credit represent unused portions of authorisations to extend credit in the form of
loans or guarantees. With respect to credit risk on commitments to extend credit, the Group is potentially
exposed to loss in an amount equal to the total unused commitments, if the unused amounts ware to be
drawn down. The Group menitors the term to maturity of credit related commitments, because longer-term
commitments generally have a greater degree of cradit risk than shorter-term commitments.
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5.3 Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that arises when the maturity of assets and liabilities does not match. An unmatched
position potentially enhances profitability, but can also increase the risk of losses. The Group has
procedures with the object of minimlsing such losses such as malntaining sufficlent cash and other highly
liquid current assets and by having available an adequate amount of committed credit facilitias.

5.4 Capital risk management
Capital includes equity shares and share premium, convertibie preference shares and loan from parent
company.

The Group manages its capital to ensure that it will be able ta continue as & golng concern while maximising
the return to sharsholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance. Tha Group's overall
strategy remains unchanged from last year,

6. Critical accounting estimates, Judgments and assumptions

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resuiting accounting estimates
will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results, The estimates and assumptions that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and Ilabilities within the
next financial year are discussed bealow.

’ Calculation of loss allowancs

When measuring expected credit losses, the Group uses reasonable and supportable forward
looking information; which is based on assumptions for the future movement of different economic
drivers and how these drivers will affect each other.

Loss given default is an estimate. of the loss arising on default. It is based on the difference between
the contractual cash flows dug and those that the lender would expect to receive, taking into
account cash flows from collateral and integral credit enhancements.

Probabllity of default constitutes a key input in measuring ECL. Probability of default is an estimata
of the likelihood of default over a given time herizon, the calculation of which includes historical
data, assumptions and expectations of future conditions.

. Income taxes

Significant judgment is required in determining the provision for income taxes. There are
fransactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the
ardinary course of business. The Group recognises liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues basad
on estimates of whether additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters
is different from the amounts that wers initially recorded, such differences will impact the incoms
tax and deferred tax provisions in the period in which such datermination is made.

Critical judgements in applying the Group's accounting policies

» Impaiment of Investments In associates

35



THE AZUR SELECTION S.A.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2023

The Group periodically evaluates the recoverability of investments in associates whenever
indicators of impairment are present. Indicators of impairment include such items as declines in
revenues, earnings or cash flows or material adverse changes in the aconomic or political stability
of & particular country, which may indicate that the carrying amount of an assst is not recoverable.
If facts and circumstances indicate that investment in associates may be impaired, the estimated
future discounted cash flows associated with these associates wouid be compared to their carrying
amounts to determine if a write-down to fair value is nacessary.

. impalrment of financlal assets

The loss allowances for financlal assets are hased on assumplions about risk of default and
expected loss rates. The Group uses judgement in making these assumptions and selecting the
inputs to the impairment calculation, based on the Group's past history, existing market conditions
as well as forward looking estimates at the end of each reporting period. Details of the key
assumptions and inputs used are disclosed in note 5, Credit risk section.

. Impairment of non-financial assets

The impairment test iz parformed using the discounted cash flows expected to be generated
through the use of non-financial assets, using a discount rate that reflects the current market
estimations and the risks associated with the asset. When it is impractical to estimate the
recoverable amount of an asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash
ganerating unit in which the asset belongs to.

. Impairment of goodwill
Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an estimation of the value in use of the Group’s
cash generating units on which the goodwill has been allocated. The value in use calculation
requires the Group to estimate the future cash flows expected to arise from the cash-generating
units using a suitable discount rate in order to calculate present value,

. Useful live of depreciable assets
The Board of Directors assesses the useful lives of depreciable assets at each reporting date, and
revises them if necessary, so that the useful lives represent the expected utility of the assets to the

Group. Actual results, however, may vary due to technological obsolescence, mis-usage and other
factors that are nof easily predictable,

. Provisions

The amount recognised for provisions is estimated hased on Directors' past exparience and its
future expectations. However, the actual outcome may vary from the amount recognised.

7. Revenue

The Group darives its revenue from contracts with customers for the transfer of goods and sarvicas aver
time and at a point in time in the following major product lines:

Disaggregation of revenue 2023 2022

€ €
Rendering of services 3.100.288 2.883.403
Work executed 764.956 538.000
Rental income 1,098.241 1.235.269

4.963.465 4.656.672
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Rendering of services represents the income received from the hotel activities, specifically from the hotel
operations and the short-term rentals of hotel luxury apartments (suites).Rental income consists of the rent
receivable amounts from the sub-lease of the right-of-use assets (hotel units and tourism related
properties).

8. Other operating incoma

2023 2022
€ €
Government grants and subsidies - 642.342
Other - 125.599
- 767.941

9. Administration and other expenses
' 2023 2022
€ €
Rent 7.674 18.120
Elactricity 92423 177.713
Water supply and cleaning 130.606 93 467
Insurance 9.980 8.001
Reapalrs and maintanance 9.701 15,327
Telaphoneg and postags 9.380 8.626
Stationery and printing 9.457 16.723
Legal and aceounting fees 143.494 86.936
Other professional fees 1.333.454 1.245.657
Fines 410.809 162.427
Travelling and accommadation 188.098 73.689
Imecoverable VAT & other taxes 103.877 79.843
Write off Receivables - 142.965
Sundry expenses §27.805 149.374

3.076.738 2.278.868

Other profassional fees, for the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, also include fees and charges
from subcontractors for the renovation of properties totalling to €637.300 and €448.400, respectively.
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10. Staff costs

2023 2022
€ €
Salaries 724.724 719.005
Social security costs 163.787 159,839
Other costs £.712 8.086
894.223 887.030

11. Finance cosis
2023 2022
€ €
Interest expense on lease liabilities 361.389 119.702
Sundry finance expensss 79.525 112,112
440.914 231.814

12. Earmnings per share (EPS)

Basic EFS is calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent
by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year. Dilutad EPS is calculated
by dividing the profit attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent by the weighted average number
of ardinary shares oufstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of ordinary sharas that
would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares. There is no
diluted EPS as at 31 December 2023 and 2022,

The following table reflects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS calculations:

20123 2022
Profit {loss) for the year attributable to equity
holders of the parent {6.442.738) (3.744.330)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares 19.770.548 19.662.520
EPS {0,326) (0,190}
13.Tax

The corporate incoma tax rate in Greeca for periods commencing after 1 January 2021, is 22%.
The Company calculates deferred income tax on goodwill following the redomicile from Cyprus to Greece,
Current income and deferred tax are analysed below:

2023 2022
Current income tax: .
Current income tax charge 217.068 188.171
Defarrad tax:
I;?f!:im%ég criginating and reversal of temporary (1.213.733) 4.012 900
Total Income tax (benefit) [ expense {986.667) 4.201.071
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Raconciliation of deferrad tax:

Consolidated Statement Consolidated Statement
of flnanclal position of profit or loss
2023 2022 2023 2022
Right of use asseats 682,713 223.264 (459.449) 26.262
Provision for retirement ' (1.361) - 1.361 -
Goodwill {3.230.993) (3.986.638) {755.645) 3.986.638
Defarrad tax axpense (benefit) (1.213.733) 4,012.900
Net deferred tax llability (2.549.641) (3.763.374)
Deferred tax assets 1.736.876 262.991
Deferred tax liahilities (4.286.317) {(4.025.365)

Deferred tax liability {2.549.641) (3.763.374)

Tax returne are filed annually but the profite or losses declared for tax purposes ramain provisional until
such time, as the tax authorlties in the countries the companies operate in, examine the returns and the
records of the taxpayer and a final assessment is issued.

Pending the tax examination of the related unaudited tax years, the Group, based upon pravious years' tax
examinations and past interpretations of the tax laws, belleves that adequate provisions for probable future
tax assessments have hean made in the consolidated financial statements. Books and records of all the
entities included in the consolidation have not been audited by the tax authorities since their incorporation.
The management of the Group does not anticipate any additional liabilities for 2023, other than those
recorded In the accompanying consolidated financial statements.
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14. Propserty, plant and equipment

Cost

Balance at 1 January 2022

Additions

Balance at 31 December 2022/ 1 January
2023

Additions/Disposals

Acquisition of subsidiaries

Balance at 31 December 2023
Depreciation

Balance at 1 January 2022

Charge for the year

Balance at 31 December 2022/ 1 January
2023

Actuisition of subsidiaries

Charge for the period

Balance at 31 December 2023

Net book value
Balance at 31 December 2022
Balance at 31 December 2023

Furniture,
Bulldings fixtures and Total
office agquipmant

€ € €
1.760.286 919.927 2.680.214
- 14.487 14.487
1.760.286 934.414 2.694.700
- 67.850 67.850
993.575 225,025 1.218.500
2.753.861 1.228.188 3.982.050
222,343 642,163 864.506
80.917 49.103 130.020
303.260 691.265 994.525
848 16.893 17.741
80,952 100.732 181.684
385.080 808.890 1.193.950
1.457.026 243.148 1.700.175
2.368.801 400.239 2.788.100

Additions to €1.201.758 relate to Net Book Value of property, plant and equipment transferred to the Group
following the acquisition of the subsidiary entities Azur Yolos IKE and Azur Meganisi IKE (see Note 17).
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15, Right-of-use assets

Land and
bulldings

€
Cost
Balance at 1 January 2022 15.758.491
Additions 1.634.209
Balance at 31 December 2022 17.393.700
Addition from the acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 17) 6.380.013
Disposals (Note 17) {4.503.753)
Balance at 31 Decembar 2023 19.269.960
Depreclation
Balance at 1 January 2022 2.755.982
Charge for the period 722.883
Balance at 31 December 2022 3.478.865
Charge for the period 689.050
Disposals : (237.776)
Balance at 31 December 2023 3.930.138
Net book value
Balance at 31 Decembar 2023 15.339.820
Balance at 31 December 2022 13.914.835

The Group leases several assets including buildings, land for hotel and hotel apartments units. The average
lease term is 21 years (2022: 24 years).

The lease agreements consist of the agreed rentals aver the lease period, with Company’s right for renewal.

Tha Right-of-use assets were recognized using the Discountad Cash flows Method, The discount rates
were used in gll periods presented is 3%.

The assumptions and estimates used are based on fulure forecasts as at 31 December 2023, The
management considers that the estimates and agsumptions used in the calculation of impairment losses
are reasonable and appropriate, but such estimates are highly subjective; No impaiment loss was
recognized on the assets as a rasult of the impairment test.

Depreciation expense on right-of-use assets has been recoghised in the consolidated statement of profit
and loss.

The lease liabilities are analyzed in Note 22.
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186. Intanglble assets

Software Goodwlll Total
€ € €

Cost
Balance at 1 January 2022 ' 9.625 16.896.835 16.906.460
Additions 14.834 - 14.834
Balance at 31 December 2022 24.459 16.896.835 16.921.294
Additions 1.338 3.837.002 3.838.339
Disposals - (4.788.708) {4.788.708)
Impairment Losses - (2.483.042) (2.483.042)
Balance at 31 December 2023 25.797 13,462,086 13.487.883
Depreclation
Balance at 1 January 2022 2,255 ' - 2.255
Charge for the year 3.051 - 3.051
Balance at 31 December 2022 5,308 - 5.306
Charge for the period 2.125 - 2,125
Balance at 31 December 2023 7431 - 7431
Net book amount
Balancs at 31 December 2022 19.153 16.896.835 16.915.988
Balance at 31 December 2023 18.366 13.462.086 13.480.452

Goodwill represents the premium paid to acquire the business of the Company's subsidiares and is
measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.

The Group reassess annually the Goedwill paid for the acquisition of subsidiaries. The initial goodwill
estimate is based on the net present value of the future cash flows (NPV model) of the acquired assets.
The sensitivity and achievability of the net expected cash flows are being evaluated on an annual basls.

Impairment testing of goodwill
Key assumptions

Group cash-generating-units {CGUs) are defined generally as an investment in a hoteling business on the
basis of the sales and managerment structure. The recoverable amount of all CGUs has been determined
based on value-in-use calculations. These calculations use post-tax cash flow projections based on
flnancial budgets approved by management covering generally the remaining contracted period for a
leased asset usually up to 25 years. Foracasts rely on a combination of internal and external factors that
influence each CGU operations, such as the macroeconomic envircnment and sustainability matters.

Sales volume

Yolume assumptions are provided by lecal management and reflect its best estimates taking into
consideration: past parformance, local market growth estimates, infrastructure projects, ete. Sales volume
growth rates are also based on published industry research and take into account demographic trends
including population growth, household formation, and economic output (among other factors) in the areas
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where the Group operates.
Selling price and cost

Price assumptions are providad by loca! management and reflect its best estimates, Factors that have been
taken into consideration are: historical trends, inflation, brand loyalty, growth rate of the regional economy,
competition, production cost increases, etc.

Input cost evolution, mainly consisting of operating cost are determined by forecasted projections provided
by International agencies and institutions. Furthermore, actions for mitigating supply chain disruption and
the curtailment of the Group’s anvironmental foetprint are fagtored-in.

Termlinal value and perpetual growth rates

Terminal value cash flows are based on the long-term growth expectations for the industry in the ares of
operation. It is calculated based on sustainable sales volumes, capacity utilization, EBITDA margin and
CapEx, to reflact sustainable cash flows In perpetuity. Growth rates range betwaen 2% and 3%, are in line
with the nominal economic growth. Rates are reasonably compared to long-term inflation expectations,
adjusted for per capita consumption expectations and capacity utilization. Inputs that have been taken into
consideration are estimates from international agencies’ or banks' forecasts.

Discount rates

Discount rates of 7.89% have been calculated according to post tax weighted average cost of capital
{WACC) for each CGUs, derlving from Group’s current market risk assessment, applicable local tax rates
and local currency risk free rates.

These future cash items have been discounted using the Group's average cost of capital plus a risk
premium of 2%. Goodwill was impaired in 2023 by €2.484.657 following managements reassessment of
the future cash flows,

The addition of €3.838.616 refers. to the Goodwill resuttad from acquisition of Azur Yolos IKE and Azur
Meganisi IKE (Note 17) .

The disposal of €4.788.708 recorded in the current year relates to the balance of goodwill recognised in
prior years on the acquisition of AS Resort IKE which was disposed to third parties in May 2023.
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17. Investments 1n subsldlaries

Name Country of
incorporation

A.S Resort IKE Greece
f}i(FélSTON Glyfada Gresce
ﬁ?{réstal Vouliagmeni Greece
gﬁr‘éﬁ&'ﬁtﬁé IKE Greece
.‘1322?32?1‘5 Limited Cyprus
E%Qs?*eennispiﬁfedia Cyprus
Ei?;?tigld HeldIngs Cyprus
Azur Volos IKE Greece
Azur Meganis! IKE Greece

Loss on disposal on subsidiary

. The details of the subsidiaries ars as follows:

Principal activitios

Investment activities in the tourism ssctor
Investment activities in the tourism sector
Hotel management

Gonstruction Company

Investments in Properties
(57% owner of A & K Anaptyxiaki IKE)

Investment activities in the tourism sector
(100% owner of A Mykonoes Hotels IKE}

Investment activities in the tourism sector
{100% owner of B Mykonos Hotels IKE)

Investment activities in the tourism sactor

Investment activities in the tourism sector

2023
Holding
%

100

80

100

80

58

75

100

100

2022
HoldIlng
%

100

100

80

100

80

58

75

In May 2023 the Group sold its subsidiary AS Resort IKE to third parties for a consideratlon of € 1.373.331.
Loss on the disposal amounting to € 4.788.708 recognized as the difference betwesn the initial acquisition

cost and the sale consideration has been recorded in the statement of profit or loss.
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Acquisitien of subsidiaries

The carrying values of the identifiable assets and lizbilities of Azur Volos IKE and Azur Meganisi IKE at 6
December, 2023, wara:

Carrying Values at 6/12/2023, per company

_Azur Meganisl Azur Volos Total

Property, plant and equipment 141.705 1.060.054 1.201.769
Right-of-use assets 6.078.910 301.103 6.380.013
Other non current assets 158,369 36.340 194.708
Current asgets 27.478 524.440 £51.919
Total assets 6.406.463 1.921.937 8.328.400
Lease liabilities 6.576.303 414,904 6.991.207
Other hon current liabilities ' - 150,000 150.000
Current liabilities 266.950 220.071 487.021
Total liabilities 6.843.253 784.974 7.628.228
Tofal net llabllities on

acquisition (436.790) 1.136.963 700.172
Subsidiaries valuation . 1.598.280 2.938.894 4.537.174
Goodwill arigsing on acguisition 2.035.070 1.801.831 3.837.002

The goodwill resuited of tha above acquisitions, totalling to €3.857.876, is included in the Statement of
Financial Position, under Intangible assets. '

18. Investments in associates

2023 2022

€ €

Balance at 1 January 1.363.964 1.299,001
Share of results of associates before tax (144.850) 64.873

Balance at 31 Dacember 1.219.114 1.363.964

Goadwill on acquisition of Investments in associates amounting to €1.224.246 has been reclassified from
intangible assets.
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The detalls of the investments are as follows:

Name Country of
incorporation

MATSAR Cyprus
LTD

Principal activities 2023 2022
Holding Holding

% %

Investments activities in tourist sector 50 50

(100% owner of Grisogono Investments
IKE, a company established in Greece)

19. Trade and other receivables

2023 2022

€ €

Trade receivables 799.217 784.781
Shareholders' current accounts - debit balances 1.623.949 1.603.558
Ammounts dus from related partias 1.961.505 2.073.531
Deposits and prepayments 50.272 429 311
Advances to subcontractors 308.813 353320
Other receivables 682.403 1.971.078
Refundable VAT 510,744 289.781
Trade and other receivables 5.934.903 7.505.352

The Groap does not hold any collateral over the frading balances.

The fair values of trade and other receivables due within one year approximate to their carrying amounts

as prasented above,

The exposure of the Group io credit risk and impairment losses In relation to trade and other receivables is
reported in note 5 of the consoclidated financial statements.

20. Cash at bank and in hand

Cash at bank and in hand

2023 2022

€ €
447363 76.571
447,363 76.571

The Company’s sight and time deposits earn interast at floating rates based on daily bank deposits rates.
Sight and time deposits are made for varying periods of between one day and three months, depending on
tha immediate cash requirements of the Company.
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21. Share capital

2023 2023 2022 2022
Number of Numberof
shares € shares €
Authorised
Ordinary shares of €1 each 20.958.855 20.958.855 19.662.520 19.662.520
Issued and fully pald
‘Balance at 1 January 19.662.520 19.662.520 19.662.520 10.662.520
Addition in year : 1.296.335 1.286.335 - -
Balance at 31 December 20.958.855 20.858.855 19.662.520 19.862.520

At December 6, 2023, Company's BeD resolved a share capital increase amounting to €1.286.335 by
issuing 1.296.335 ordinary shares at a share price of a nominal value €1 each plus €2.5 share premium
per ordinary share, resulting to an additional paid in capital of € 3.240.838. The Share capital and the
Additional paid in-capital increase was made by cantribution in kind of the associate companies "Azur Volos™
and “"Azur Meganisi®.

22, Lease Liabilities

At 1st January 2022 14.061.671
Additions 1.634.209
Interest expense 119.702
Lease payments (961.960)
At 31 December 2022 14.853.624
At 1st January 2023 14.853.622
Acquisition of subsidiary 68.991.207
Disposal of subsidiary (3.228.240)
Interast expense 348.123
Lease payments (848.529)
At 31 December 2023 18.116.184

Alllease liabilities are denominated in Euro. The present value oflease liabilities consists of minimum lease
payments minus future finance charges.

During the fourth quarter of 2022 the Group entered into an agresment for the long-term lease of a plot of
land located in the Peloponnese region, between Patras and Aigio. The Company contemplates the
construction of a 5-Star resort on the 7,5 hectare site at an estimated investment of €40 milfion,

It is the Group's policy to lease properties and operate or sublease them as hotel units or in hospitality
industry with average lease and sublease term 24 years and 9 years raspectively. For year ended 31
December 2023, the average effactive horrowing rate was 3.0% (2022: 3.0%). Interest rates are fixed at
the contract date, and thus expose the Group to fair value interast rate risk. All leases are on a fixed
repayment basis and no arrangements have been entered into for contingent rental payments.
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Futurs minimum lease payments are analysed as follows:;

Maturity of lease liabilities
0-1 year

1-5 years

Over § years

31.12.2023 31.12.2022
661.808 831.969
2,892,352 3.261.393
14,662,024 10.760.262
18.116.184 14.853.624

The fair values of lease obligations approximate to their carrying amounts as presented above.

The Group's obligations under finance leases are secured by tha lessors' title to the leased assets,

23. Provisions and other liabilities and charges

The amounts included in the conzolidated statement of financial position include the following:

Pension and other

Guarantee on

post retiremant rents
obligations receivable Total

€ € €
Balance at 1 January 2022 26.424 1.474.927 1.501.351
Additions - 2.414 2.414
Used (17.059) - {17.059)
Balance at 31 December 2022/ 1 .
January 2023 9.365 1.477.341 1.486.706
Additions - 150.000 150.000
Used (6.187) - {6.187)
Balance at 31 December 2023 3.178 1.627.341 1.630.519

The amounts included in the consolidated statement of financial position include the following:

Provisions and other liabilities, to be used after more
than twelve months

31.12.2023 31.12.2022
€ €
1.630.518

1.486.708
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24. Trade and other payables

2023 2022

€ €

Trade payables 2369.002 1.255.218
Social insurance and other taxes 1.644.781 1.520.427
VAT 62.398 155,890
Accruals 33.661 37.827
Other creditors 7.040 2.470.083
Gavernment granis 307.071 273.334
Payables to associates 1.760.861 1.937.991

4.184.904 7.650.451

Government grants relate to government subsidias given to the Group's Greek subsidiaries for financial
support purposes due to the adverse consequences caused by the pandemic COVID-19.

According to decision issued by the Ministry of Finance in Greece, it was established that approximately
50% of the grants given by the government will nct be returned by the companies. The Group will repay
the balance of € 307.071.

The fair values of trade and cther payables due within one year approximate to their carrying amounis as
presented above.

25. Operating Environment of the Group

Hospitality (fourism) industry is dependent on consumer confidence, highly sensitive to economie, but also
social environment. In Greece the industry has been growing fast and systematically in the last three years,
in terms of both visitors and revenues. That increased Gresk share in the global market, led to higher
occupancy and stabilised business profitability 2023 was a very good season for the Greek hospitality
industry and the Industry experts anticipate the same for 2024,

Three years after inflation began its rapid increase, investors, economists and govemments are optimistic
anticipated the de-ascalation of the bank Interest rates. Inflationary pressures and the energy crisis in
Europe, following Russia's invasion in Ukraine and the turmoil in the worldwide market caused by the
disruption in the shipping transportation at the Gulf of Aden tends to de-escalate, Supply chain disruptions
caused by the wars in Ukraine and Palaistine, kay drivers of increasing inflation - have eased significantly.
Global supply chains have “returned to normal”, with the restart of Ghina, which lifted strict anti-pandemic
restrictions as the last driver of improvement.

The aim of the Company's management is to adapt to the challenging hoteling environment, maintain
positive cash flows mainly through the optimization of working capital management, as well as strict
selection and evaluation of investment opportunities.

Regarding the labour market, the employment cost index is slowing down, For an economy where the
demand for workers significantly cutstrips the supply, we would expect to ses wages and employment costs
rise, hence to increase groups administrative costs.

These economic conditions will affect the borrowing interest rates hence the ability of the Group to obtain
naw borrowings to finance new investments.

The Company's Management is unable to predict ail developments which could have an impact on the
Greek ecocnomy and consequently, what effect, if any, they could have on the future financial performance,
cash flows and financial position of the Group.
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Basad on the evaluation performed, the Group's management has concluded that no further provision is
require. During 2023 the management recorded an impairment on Its intanglble assets (Note 16).

The management balieves that it is taking all the necessary measures to maintain the viability of the Group
and the smooth conduct of its operations In the current business and economic environment.

26. Related party transactions

The following transactions were carried out with relatad parties:

26.1 Directors' remuneration

2023 2022
€ €
Directors' fees - 2.000
Directors' ramuneration - 2.000
- 4,000
26.2 Sales of goods and services
2623 2022
Nature of
transactions € €
latin Beach IKE Services - 522.873
Grisogono Investments |KE (Greece) Services 33.300 30.000
33.300 552.873
Sales o the associated undertakings were made at cost.
26.3 Purchases of goods and services
2023 2022
Nature of
transactions € €
Lokland Consulting Limited (CY) Services 463.000 -
463.000 -
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26.4 Receivables from related parties

2023 2022
Nature of €

Name transactions €
Grisogono Investments IKE (Greece) Services 31.800 107.500
Cffice A IKE Finance 77.705 50.475
Azur Volos IKE(Greece) Finance/Services - 50.210
Azur Meganisi IKE(Greece) Finance 1475473 1.501.744
Azur Sklathos IKE (Greece) Finance 2b6 256
George Arvanitakis Technical
Manra?factoring Company Finance 2.995 51.527
Panamera Manufactoring Company Finance 28.321 47.213
Kiratsa Stavroula Finance 174.000 69.000
Latin Beach Athens IKE (Greece) Services 170.955 43.565
Revithis loannis Finance 143.041

1.961.505  2.073.531

The recelvables from related parties were provided interast free, and there was no specified repayment
date.

26.5 Payables fo related parties

2023 2022
Nature of

Name fransactions € €
Grisigono Investments IKE(Greece) Sarvices 897.585 854,822
Lokiand Consulting Limited (CY) Services - 439.000
Offica A IKE Finance 51.050 -
Azur Valos IKE (Greece} Finance - 445,964
Azur Maganisi IKE(Gresce) Finance - 51.660
Arvanitakis Management Company SARL Trade 41,243 51.243
Latin Beach Athens IKE {Greece) Services 770.983 95,303

1.760.861 1.937.991

The payables {o related parties were provided interest free, and there was no specified repayment date.
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26.6 Shareholders' current accounts - debit balances (Note 19)

2023 2022
€ €
Georgios Arvanitakis 1.623.249 1.603.656

1.623.949 1.603.556

The directorsYshareholders’ current accounts are interest fras, and have no specified repayment date.

Management has assassed tha recoverability of the amounts dus/from the related parties and concluded
that no provision for impairment is required.

26.7. Signiftcant agreemsants with management
At the end of the year, no significant agreements existed between the Group and its Management.
27. Contingent liabilitias

The Group had no contingent liabilities as of 31 December 2023,

28. Commitments

The Group had no capital or other commitments as of 31 December 2023.

29. Events after the reporting period

There were no material events after the reporting period, which have a bearing on the understanding of the
consolidated financial statements.
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